





NORTHERN WYOMING COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Annual Security/ Fire Safety Report 2015



Table of Contents:

Introduction	3
Emergency Number Quick Reference Guide	4
Safety Tips on Campus	4
Campus Security Authority (CSA)	5
District Police Information	5
Crime Reporting Policy/Procedure	5
Weapons on Campus	6
Timely Warnings	6
Emergency Preparedness	7
Response	7
Evacuation	7
Emergency Notification	7
District Website	8
District E-Mail	8
Testing and Evaluation	8
Missing Community Member	8
Campus Prevention Activities	9
Maintenance of Campus Facilities	10
Security and Access to Northern Wyoming Community College District	10
Grounds and Buildings	
Alcohol and Drug Policy	11
Drug and Alcohol Abuse Education	11
Counseling Services	11
Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault and Stalking	12
Reporting Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault and	12
Stalking	
Sexual Misconduct, Disciplinary Proceeding, Sanctions and	13
Accommodations	
Violation of Law and District Discipline	17
Local, State, and Federal Legal Sanctions	17
Procedures For On-Campus Disciplinary Action	17
Procedure for Addressing Criminal Activity Off Campus	17
Sex Offender Registration	18
Preparation of Annual Disclosure and Distribution of Crime Statistics	18
Hate Crimes	18
NWCCD Crime Statistics	19
Fire Safety Report	56
Fire Statistics	59
Appendix	63



INTRODUCTION

The Northern Wyoming Community College District (NWCCD) has developed important programs to help protect your safety and well-being. The following information is not a contract. It is a useful description of our campus safety policies and we encourage you to read it carefully.

Education requires a safe environment for success. The Northern Wyoming Community College District is strongly committed to crime prevention and the safety of our students, staff and visitors. Your cooperation is essential to minimize criminal activity and create a safer community for all. If you see something, say something.

Like other institutions we are not without occasional crimes. You are not only a citizen of the country and state in which you live; you are an important member of the NWCCD Community. That means you must obey both federal, state and local laws as well as the rules and regulations of the NWCCD. Being aware of those rules and taking personal responsibility for your own conduct and safety improves the quality of life for everyone.

We comply with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act or "Clery Act," a Federal statute requiring all colleges and universities that participate in Federal financial aid programs to keep and disclose information about crime on and near their campuses. We also comply with the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA).

Emergency Numbers

Quick Reference911for Ambulance, Fire, or Crime in Progress307-674-6446Non-Emergency - Call District Police307-674-6446x4150 to report a crime or other non-emergency
communication307-674-6446Office of Campus Life Sheridan College307-674-6446x2300307-689-0254Office of Campus Life Gillette College307-689-0254x2351307-674-6446Office of Counseling Services Sheridan College307-674-6446x2008307-674-6446Office of Counseling Services Gillette College307-689-0254x2350307-689-0254Sheridan Police Department307-672-2413Gillette Police Department307-686-5250Buffalo Police Department307-684-5581

Safety Tips on Campus

Personal Safety

- The keys to personal safety are awareness and assertiveness.
- Look assertive, confident, and aware of your surroundings.
- Trust your intuition. If a particular situation makes you feel uncomfortable or unsafe, choose an alternative. Don't be afraid to ask for help.
- Keep keys accessible and wear comfortable clothing for added safety and defense.
- Turn around and confront someone you think is following you; the surprise of a hostile look will deter most assailants.
- In attempted sexual assaults, approximately half of the women escape if they scream, and up to 85 percent escape if they physically resist quickly and vigorously. Trust your instincts.
- Know vulnerable targets of the assailant; eyes, nose, throat, stomach, kneecaps, and groin.

Home Safety

- Make a habit of keeping your doors locked. Lock your doors when sleeping, or when leaving a roommate asleep inside.
- Do not leave valuables in open view. Take valuables home during vacation.
- Never prop open doors.
- Never allow unknown persons to enter your room. Report suspicious individuals to the Campus Police.
- Require identification and authorization from maintenance staff requesting access to your room.
- Report to the resident hall staff all door, locks, and windows that are in need of repair.
- Be suspicious of unknown persons loitering or checking doors in your hall, and call Campus Police, 307-674-6446 x4150.
- Backpacks, purses, book bags, etc., should never be left unattended.



Campus Security Authority (CSA)

To help ensure the safety of the NWCCD community, the NWCCD has designated Campus Security Authorities. The Clery Act states that a CSA can be defined as any one of the following:

- Campus Police Department or a campus security department.
- Any individual who has responsibility for campus security but who do not constitute a campus police department or security department
- An individual or organization specified in an institutions statement of campus security policy as an individual or organization to which students and employees should report criminal offenses.
- An official of an institution who has significant responsibility for student campus activities including but not limited to, student housing, student discipline and campus judicial proceedings.

Individuals should report any complaints regarding non-compliance with the Clery Act or VAWA to a CSA.

The District Police

The District Police Department is the law enforcement agency serving the Northern Wyoming Community College District. The officers of the District Police Department are trained and certified under the guidelines of the Wyoming Peace Officers Standards and Training Commission (POST) and have the authority of sworn police officers with full power of arrest under Wyoming State Statute on all property owned and controlled by the District, including all streets and state highways contiguous to and running through the campuses as well as statewide jurisdiction while on official business. The campuses share concurrent jurisdiction with local, county and state Law Enforcement agencies. The District Police Department maintains a close working relationship with those agencies. The District Police Department, through a cooperative agreement, works closely with the Buffalo, Gillette, and Sheridan Police Departments and enforces city and state laws within the jurisdiction of the cities of Buffalo, Gillette, and Sheridan. Officers are expected to exercise law enforcement authority in a manner consistent with the educational mission and purpose of the institution. Officers are dedicated to providing first-class service to the community. Officers patrol the campus on foot, by bicycle, and in vehicles. Officers are available 24 hours a day. Crime statistics are compiled by coordination with the local police agencies and by an electronic record keeping system dedicated to the department.

Mission Statement:

We, the campus police department, exist to serve all people within our campus with respect, fairness and compassion. We are committed to the prevention of crime and protection of life and property; the preservation of peace, order & safety; the enforcement of laws and ordinances; and the safeguarding of constitutional guarantees.

With service to the students and employees as our foundation, we are driven by goals to enhance the quality of life, investigating problems as well as incidents, seeking solutions and fostering a sense of security on our campus. We nurture trust by holding ourselves to the highest standards of performance and ethics.

To fulfill its mission, the campus police are dedicated to providing a quality work environment and the development of its members through effective training and leadership.

Crime Reporting Policy

Every crime should be reported to law enforcement officials as soon as possible. This is the most effective way to ensure the well-being of the campus community. If this is not possible for some reason, the crime should be reported to one of the following: dean of students in the Office of Campus Life and Housing, Director of Counseling Services, or to a faculty or staff member who the student is comfortable talking to about the crime.

The District Police will investigate every crime and request assistance from other state and local law enforcement agencies when needed. The District Police policies and practices are similar to the practices of local law enforcement agencies in the area.

Local police agencies provide information to the District Police Department on matters of criminal activity at off-campus recognized student activities. (This includes student organizations recognized by the District and any organization with off- campus housing facilities. At this time, there is no off-campus housing recognized by any



campus organization.)

In the area of sexual assault, all faculty and staff are strongly encouraged to get the victim into a support environment through the Office of Counseling Services even if there is not a report filed with the District Police.

Confidential crime reporting is an essential, if not preferred, method of reporting. The primary point of crime reporting should be to the District Police Department or Office of Campus Life and Housing. If you choose to file a confidential report though the District Police, the chief of police or a designee of the District Police Department can file a report on the details of the incident without revealing your identity. The purpose of a confidential report is to comply with your wish to keep the matter confidential, while taking steps to ensure the future safety of yourself and others. With such information, the District can keep an accurate record of the number of incidents involving students, employees and visitors; determine where there is a pattern of crime with regard to a particular location, method, or assailant; and alert the campus community to potential danger. Reports filed in this manner are counted and disclosed in the annual crime statistics for the institution. It is the policy of the District to encourage the reporting of crimes even if the victim does not wish to file a complaint. All faculty and staff are informed of the policy at the back to school meetings each year and are encouraged to report any crime. Any information received will be reported to the District Police for crime reporting notifications, campus crime statistics reporting, and campus education programs. The chief of police at Northern Wyoming Community College District is responsible for the collection, reporting, and disseminating of the annual crime statistics from the local police agencies and campus security authorities for inclusion in the annual crime report.

Crime Reporting Procedure

To Report a Crime in Progress or an Emergency, dial 9-1-1. Contact Campus Police at 307-674-6446 x4150 (Sheridan College) or 307-686-0254 x1210 (Gillette College) to report a non-emergent crime. Any suspicious activity or person seen in the parking lots or loitering around vehicles, inside buildings or around the Residential Halls should be reported to the police department. In addition you may report a crime to the following areas:

- 1. Dean of Students 307-674-6446 x2303, Whitney Building 145J
- Director, Counseling Services, Sheridan College 307-674-6446 x2008, Griffith Memorial Building 135 or Director, Counseling Services Gillette College 307-686-0254 x2350, Technical Education Center 212b
- 3. Director, Human Resources 307-674-6446 x2811, Griffith Memorial Building 131B
- 4. Director, Campus Life and Housing Sheridan College 307-674-6446 x2300, Thorne-Rider Campus Center 106 or Gillette College 307-686-0254 x2351, GC Main Building 110C
- Director of Intercollegiate Athletics and Gillette College Director of Student Affairs 307-686-0254 x1443, GC Main Building
- 6. Director of Sheridan College in Johnson County, 307-684-2001.

NWCCD Police and the Buffalo, Gillette, and Sheridan Police Departments and the Campbell, Johnson, and Sheridan County Sheriff's Departments have a mutual aid and working agreement. Each department augments the other within their jurisdictions during mutual investigations, arrest, and prosecutions. NWCCD Police personnel attend monthly meetings with local law enforcement agencies to exchange ideas and problems which may be of concern for the NWCCD community.

Weapons on Campus

In compliance with state law it is unlawful for any person to carry a concealed firearm on campus. In compliance with NWCCD Policies, it is against policy for any person to bear, concealed or otherwise, any rifle, pistol or revolver. It is also unlawful to bear on or about one's person any concealed slingshot, bludgeon or knife with a blade over four (4) inches in length. The carrying in vehicles of any weapons listed above is also prohibited on campus, as is the discharge of any firearm, gun or other weapon. This excludes military personnel on official duty and law enforcement officers. Weapons (including bows and crossbows) and reloading materials may not be stored in student housing. Students violating this policy will be evicted. Residence Hall students may have access to weapons storage through the campus police office.

Timely Warnings

In the event that a situation arises, either on or off campus, that, in the judgment of the Chief of Campus Police, constitutes an ongoing or continuing threat, a campus wide "timely warning" will be issued. The warning will be



issued through the college e-mail and text message system to students, faculty, staff. Depending on the particular circumstances of the crime, especially in all situations that could pose an immediate threat to the community and individuals, the Campus Police may also post a notice on the campus web site at: www.sheridan.edu, providing the campus community with more immediate notification. These reports are also distributed using press releases, warning posters, campus meetings, and announcements depending on the nature of the event. The website is immediately accessible via computer by all faculty, staff and students. Anyone with information warranting a timely warning should report the circumstances to the Campus Police office, by phone (307-674-6446 x4150 (SC & SCJC) or 307-686-0254 x 1210 (GC)) or in person at the Campus Police Office, South Hall (SC) or in the Main Building Room 149 (GC).

Emergency Preparedness

The ultimate goal of emergency preparedness is to promote community safety, assure continuity of emergency response operations and restore normal District operations and services as quickly as possible following an emergency. The Crisis Management Plan identifies key decision makers and their roles during a campus emergency. The plan establishes emergency command centers and describes procedures that will be utilized during specifically identified severities of emergency.

Response

Northern Wyoming Community College District has established a multi-layered approach to emergency preparedness. This approach was developed and modeled with the Incident Life Cycle in mind. The Incident Life Cycle includes; Prevention, Preparedness, Response, Recovery, and Mitigation. Northern Wyoming Community College District has established a Crisis Management Plan to lay the foundation for emergency planning and response. This plan also establishes Response and Resource Teams to aid the district communities in times of crisis and sets standards for continuous review of policies and procedures. The Crisis Response and Resource Teams will immediately respond to campus emergencies in order to quickly mitigate the incident.

Evacuation

Buildings on campus have a notification system for emergency evacuation. In most buildings this is a fire alarm system. Some systems sound only an alarm while others give voice evacuation directions or announcements. Whenever the alarm system sounds and/or voice command for evacuation is sounded, everyone must leave the building or move to a safe location.

It is required of all departments to have an evacuation plan, which explains the emergency systems and evacuation procedures. This document is to be readily available and provide information such as emergency telephone numbers; evacuation personnel duties; designated meeting points; and building information such as whether the building has an automatic sprinkler system, smoke detection, and/or manual alarm pull stations. The District Police Department provides Evacuation Training to individual departments. Contact the District Police Department at 307-674-6446 x4150 to set up training or for assistance in development of an Evacuation Plan.

The Campus Life and Housing Office distributes the following documents to students residing in District housing, "Residence Hall Safety Procedures and Rules". The document contains emergency evacuation and safety procedures for natural disasters.

The District Emergency Operations Plan calls upon all employees to be familiar with the Employee Quick Reference Emergency Information Handbook. For additional information on District emergency procedures and safety resources, consult a handbook located inside each classroom

Emergency Notification

Northern Wyoming Community College District has multiple campus-wide emergency notification systems that can rapidly provide mass notification during natural disasters or other emergencies to the Northern Wyoming Community College District community. The Chief of Police, in consultation with the President's Administration Team and the Crisis Management Team, will utilize the Emergency Operations Plan's incident typing and state of readiness conditions to determine if a notification is necessary, and if so, will determine the content of the notification. The District Police Department will initiate all notifications. Northern Wyoming Community College District will, without delay, and taking into account the safety of the community, determine the content of any notification and initiate the notification system, unless the notification will, in the professional judgment of



responsible authorities, compromise efforts to assist victims or to contain, respond to, or otherwise mitigate the emergency. Information regarding the response and notification policies will be distributed to the faculty and staff during annual meetings and to students during orientation sessions.

District Website

Up-to-date information regarding the status of the district is always available on the district's website. During and following emergency situations, information as it applies to the district's public will be posted on this Web page as it becomes available, including information about such things as district closure, etc. This Web page also provides links to department-specific information (i.e., entertainment venue and program changes, class schedules, and emergency operations procedures). In the event of an emergency situation or campus crises, it is the responsibility of each department to update the Web page with department-specific information as it becomes available. Other information will be posted as deemed appropriate.

District E-Mail

Mass e-mails will be used to provide students, faculty and staff with information regarding potential threats to the safety and security of the campus community. E-mails will also be used as a way to notify students, faculty and staff of emergency situations and keep them updated on the situation. The College employs the following types of e-mails:

- **Informational:** any communication that increases the awareness of campus activities, events, or services (i.e., parking disruptions).
- Operational: communication that requires some action on the recipient's part or a required notification by the College (i.e.,
 - a message about benefits eligible information).
- Official: a non-urgent communication from an executive officer (i.e., a message from the College president).
- Emergency: an emergency announcement from an executive officer regarding an imminent event, such as a tornado warning.

Testing and Evaluation

Northern Wyoming Community College District will test the emergency response and evacuation procedures at least once per calendar year. The District Police Department will publicize these procedures in conjunction with this test and document the date and time of the event, as well as provide a description of the exercise and state whether it was announced or unannounced. See the following: On April 16, 2014 at 10:00am the NWCCD Crisis management team at Sheridan College conducted a drill concerning a fake pipe bomb being found in the Ladies bathroom in the Edward E. Whitney Academic Building, this was an unannounced drill. The NWCCD Crisis Management Team evaluated the NWCCD Alert system by sending a text message to evacuate the Whitney building and all other buildings lock down. They also evaluated the overhead paging system in all buildings stating the same message as above. Local emergency response agencies were notified but opted not to participate in the drill. It was determined that the NWCCD Alert system was well received but there was some difficulty understanding the overhead paging system in certain areas. Evacuations were conducted in an orderly and safe manner. Lockdown procedures were followed in all alerted buildings. It was discovered that an outside alert system would be beneficial to subjects that were in transition between buildings. This concern was remedied with an external speaker system.

Missing Community Member

If a member of the Northern Wyoming Community College District community has reason to believe that a student or employee is missing, they must immediately contact the Northern Wyoming Community College District Police Department. Missing person reports can be made via the guidelines outlined in the "Crime Reporting" section in this pamphlet.

When making notification, provide as much information as possible regarding the missing person including: a physical description; what they were wearing when last seen; where they were last seen; what physical condition they were in when last seen; if they are driving or have a vehicle and its description; and whom they were with. In addition, report any information you are aware of related to medical or other special conditions. All possible efforts are made to locate the student/employee to determine his or her state of health and well-being though the collaboration with local law enforcement, Student Affairs (student), affiliated District department (employee) and other resources as available.



District Police will immediately notify or follow-up (if report already filed) on the status of the missing person with appropriate law enforcement agencies. Concurrently, District officials will endeavor to determine the student/employee whereabouts through contact with friends and associates.

Students may designate a confidential emergency contact in the event they are determined to be missing for more than 24 hours. More information about emergency contact information collection practices is available from the Campus Life and Housing Office and the Office of the Dean of Students. Designated emergency contact information will be disclosed only to authorized District personnel, except in cases where the information can be used in furtherance of a missing person investigation in which case information will be released to law enforcement officials.

If located, verification of the student/employee state of health and intention of returning to the campus is made. If a need is identified and as appropriate, a referral will be made to professional counselor(s) and/or medical practitioners. If not located, the District Police Department is required to notify the custodial parent or guardian (student under 18) and/or student/employee missing person designated emergency contact(s) to advise on missing status and determine if they know of the whereabouts of the missing person no later than 24 hours after the time an individual is determined missing. In all cases, the District Police Department will inform any appropriate law enforcement agency that the student/employee is missing no later than 24 hours after the time the individual is determined missing. District administrators and staff will cooperate and assist the investigative agency in all ways prescribed by prevailing law. Upon closure of the investigation, the District Police Department will notify custodial parent/guardian (student under 18), any missing person designated emergency contacts and either the Dean of Students (student) or the Director of the employee-affiliated Department of the status of the case.

Education and Primary Prevention Programs

The District engages in comprehensive educational programming to prevent domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking. Educational programming consists of primary prevention and awareness programs for all incoming students and new employees and ongoing awareness and prevention campaigns for students and faculty that:

- a. Identifies domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking as prohibited conduct;
- b. Defines what behavior constitutes domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking;
- c. Defines what behavior and actions constitute consent to sexual activity;
- d. Provides safe and positive options for bystander intervention that may be carried out by an individual to prevent harm or intervene when there is a risk of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking against a person other than the bystander; programs include Campus Clarity Bystander training and "Think about it."
- e. Provides information on risk reduction so that students and employees may recognize warning signs of abusive behavior and how to avoid potential attacks.
- f. Provides an overview of information contained in the Annual Security and Fire Safety Report in compliance with the Clery Act.

The College has an annual educational campaign that distributes educational materials to new students, new employee and faculty, and educational programs throughout the year as outlined below.

Students, faculty, and staff should report potential safety or security hazards by calling the District Police Department at Sheridan College 307-674-6446 x4150 or Gillette College 307-686-2054 x1210.



Ongoing Education and Awareness Programing

The District offers programs and activities to raise awareness about Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault & Stalking to educating communities and individuals on how to prevent victimization on our campus. The following are examples of annual programs currently offered:

The District Police Department presents a variety of safety and crime prevention programs at least once a year and also by request. These programs include Basic Personal Safety, Personal Property Theft Deterrence, and Who We Are: An Overview of District Police Services. Campus Police and the Crisis Management Team run a drill each calendar year to ensure equipment is properly working and members of the campus community are aware of what actions to take in an emergency. The A.L.I.C.E. program has been introduced and training as been conducted as a way to deal with active threats and lock down situations.

The Department of Campus Life and Housing sanctions 3rd Millennium's Under the Influence and Marijuana 101 to students who receive alcohol or drug violations. Under the Influence and Marijuana 101 are available for any student who wishes to learn more. Sexual safety, assault, and sexual assault prevention are addressed at Residence Hall Health and Safety Meetings for all on campus residents. Bystander intervention training Campus Clarity is included for all student leadership. In addition to these programs, the student programming board brings in speakers to discuss alcohol, drugs, and sexual assault. They also run educational programs such as RHA House party, Mario Cart DUI and Water Pong Tournaments to simulate the effects of alcohol through the use of drunk goggles. By Stander Intervention Training is administered to all Resident Assistants as well as offered throughout the year to the entire campus.

NWCCD Counseling Services offers programs in positive/healthy relationships, self-confidence building, alcohol and drug dependency assessments, sexual assault prevention, and many more throughout the year in group and individual settings. Health101 monthly online publications are sent to students for their reference. Referrals are made on a case by case basis to community resources. Brochures are available in multiple campus areas addressing sexual assault prevention, alcohol safety, sexual safety, drug prevention, and many more topics.

Employees of Northern Wyoming Community College District have counseling services available to them through the Employee Assistance Program through Wyoming State Insurance benefits. District Campus safety and security programs are presented to incoming freshmen at orientation, to the on-campus residents as part of their regular programming during the year, to faculty and staff at back to school meetings and various other meetings throughout the year, and new employees during New Employee Orientation.

Maintenance of Campus Facilities

Proper lighting and building security are major factors in reducing crime on campus. The Physical Plant maintains the District buildings and grounds with a concern for safety and security. Inspections of campus facilities are conducted regularly, and repairs are made as quickly as possible. Individuals should report potential safety and security hazards, such as broken locks and windows. All members of the campus community are encouraged to report safety and security hazards to the Physical Plant or District Police.

Security and Access to Northern Wyoming Community College District Grounds and Buildings

During business hours, the College (excluding certain housing facilities) will be open to students, parents, employees, contractors, guests, and invitees. During non-business hours access to all College facilities is by key or key card, if issued, or by admittance via the NWCCD Police or Campus Life and Housing staff. In the case of periods of extended closing, the District will admit only those with prior written approval to all facilities. Residence halls are secured 24 hours a day. Over extended breaks, the doors of all halls will be secured around the clock. Emergencies may necessitate changes or alterations to any posted schedules. Areas that are revealed as problematic have security surveys conducted of them. Administrators from the NWCCD Police, Dean of Students Office, Physical Plant, Residence Life, and other concerned areas review these results. These surveys examine security issues such as landscaping, locks, alarms, lighting, and communications.



Northern Wyoming Community College District grounds are open to visitors on a daily basis with tours available through the Office of Admissions. Vehicular access to campus is carefully controlled by uniformed officers of the District Police Department. Visitor parking is allowed in designated areas or by temporary permit only. To obtain parking permission, please see the Information Desk in the Whitney Building (Sheridan). Visitors to Gillette College may park in any unrestricted space on campus.

Academic and administrative buildings are locked after normal working hours and residence halls are controlled by District Housing Policy. Every effort is made to insure that all residence halls are free from uninvited guests. Residence halls are locked 24 hours a day. Visitors must be registered with the Resident Assistants and must be escorted by their host at all times.

Alcohol and Drug Policy

Northern Wyoming Community College District strictly prohibits the possession, use, or distribution of marijuana, cocaine, LSD, or any hallucinogens or other controlled substances by anyone in a campus facility or on property owned or controlled by the District. NWCCD policy also prohibits the manufacture, sale, possession, or use of alcohol on District property or at official District activities by students and employees. NWCCD is a drug free campus. Any individual known to be possessing, using, or distributing such drugs or alcohol is subject to disciplinary actions and possible arrest, imprisonment, or fine according to state and federal law. NWCCD policies and procedures, including the enforcement practices of the NWCCD Police Department, are consistent with applicable local, state, and federal laws regarding the possession, use, and/or sale of these substances. Alcohol and drug offenses shall be deemed as serious, and enforcement will be reflected accordingly. All criminal citations written to NWCCD students for alcohol and/or drug violations result in notification and possible disciplinary action through the Dean of Students Office and/or Campus Life and Housing Office.

For further information, contact the District Police Department at 307-674-6446 x4150.

Drug and Alcohol Abuse Education

Northern Wyoming Community College District assists students in finding alternatives to alcoholic beverages to promote social interaction and stress reduction. NWCCD also provides services for students who experience alcohol related difficulties.

Northern Wyoming Community College District benefited employees have access to Horizon Behavioral Services. This service provides employee assistance, Work Life and managed behavioral healthcare services throughout the United States, its territories, Canada, and other international locations. This program is offered in connection with group insurance policies underwritten by Standard Insurance Company.

For students with substance abuse problems or concerns, assistance is available through the NWCCD Counseling Center. Experienced professional counselors offer support for students in an atmosphere of understanding and confidentiality. Counseling Services offers individual assessment and referral to both on- and off-campus resources.

Anyone aware of substance abuse problems that exist with friends, roommates, classmates, District personnel, or family members is encouraged to consult a counselor at Counseling Services. Remaining silent or waiting until the situation is out of control is neither respectful nor responsible.

Counseling Services

Due to the sensitive and personal nature of counseling, all personal counseling services are confidential. This means that nothing you share with your counselor is revealed to anyone outside of Counseling Services without your written consent (with the exceptions of imminent danger of serious harm to yourself or others, abuse of children or endangered adults, or in the case of a legally issued subpoena). It means that no one can phone or visit CS and even find out whether you are receiving services. Counselors are bound both ethically and legally to maintain confidentiality.

Northern Wyoming Community College District benefited employees have access to Horizon Behavioral Services.



This service provides employee assistance, Work Life and managed behavioral healthcare services throughout the United States, its territories, Canada, and other international locations. This program is offered in connection with group insurance policies underwritten by Standard Insurance Company.

Each semester campus and local resources are distributed to the NWCCD community through a MyNWCCD announcement.

Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault and Stalking

The NWCCD prohibits the crimes of dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking. An officer responding to an incident of domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking shall conduct a thorough investigation and, when the elements of a crime are present, prepare a domestic violence report, irrespective of the wishes of the victim or the presence or absence of the suspect.

Reporting Sexual Assault, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, or Stalking

As soon as possible following an incident of rape or sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking a victim should report the incident to the District Police at Sheridan College 307-674-6446 x4150 and Gillette College 307-686-0254 x1210. Reporting to the District Police can help:

- 1) protect you and others from future victimization;
- 2) apprehend the assailant;
- 3) open options regarding criminal prosecution, action against the perpetrator, and District disciplinary action.

When you report a sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking, a District Police officer will gather information from you concerning the specifics of the incident. These questions are necessary to obtain a description of your assailant, where the crime occurred, who may have been present, and other data pertinent to investigation and prosecution.

Reporting a sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking and choosing to prosecute are two separate things. When you file a report, you are encouraged to continue with legal proceedings or with District disciplinary action.

After the report is filed,

- a sexual assault victim is escorted to a local hospital for a medical examination. The medical examination is
 necessary to eliminate the possibility of venereal disease and other contagious diseases and obtain
 necessary lab specimens for prosecution. The victim is also referred to the NWCCD Counseling Center or
 the local advocacy center for assistance depending on the preference of the victim.
- a domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking victim will be encouraged to seek medical attention if necessary. The victim will also be put in contact with the NWCCD Counseling Center or local advocacy center for assistance, depending on the preference of the victim.
- in either case, an investigation shall be prompt, fair, and impartial and be conducted by officials who receive annual training on the issues related to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking and how to conduct an investigation that protects the safety of victims and promotes accountability.

Do not shower, bathe, or change clothes. If you do, vital evidence may be lost. Do not brush your teeth. All evidence is needed when the medical examination is performed after the sexual assault.

The victim is encouraged, where applicable, to pursue the order of protection, no contact orders, restraining orders, or similar lawful orders issued by criminal, civil, or tribal court. The victim is referred to the local advocacy center to assist with filing the appropriate forms.

The District will protect the identity of the victim as much as possible. Nonpublic information will only be disseminated with a court order.

The District Police report is important whether or not prosecution is desired. The District Police will also assist you in reporting a sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking to the Buffalo, Gillette, or Sheridan Police Departments or to the Campbell, Johnson, or Sheridan County Sheriff's Departments if the incident occurred in the jurisdiction of either of these agencies.



While reporting to the police is the best method for dealing with a sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking, it is essential that it be reported to someone so that support activities can be provided to victims. Incidences may also be reported to the NWCCD Counseling Centers.

A student or employee who reports he or she has been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, whether the offense occurred on or off campus, shall be provided with a written explanation of the student or employee's rights and options.

Sexual Misconduct Disciplinary Proceeding, Sanctions and Accommodations

During the investigation and prior to the final determination, the College may take appropriate Interim Measures to protect the parties involved. A Complainant or Respondent may request an Interim Measure or other protection or the College may impose Interim Measures at its discretion to ensure the safety of all parties, the College community, and/or the integrity of the process. These actions are not a presumption of responsibility for violation of the Sexual Misconduct and Intimate Partner Violence Policy. Interim measures may be imposed whether or not formal disciplinary action is sought by the Complainant or the College.

Interim Measures may prevent a student from attending class and other College activities. The Dean of Student's Office will communicate with Academic Advising and a student's faculty instructors and/or advisors at the request of the student in order to determine if alternate arrangements can be made to support a student's completion of academic assignments.

The College will try to provide academic support where necessary. Academic support means that the Dean of Student's Office will communicate with Academic Advising or faculty on a student's behalf. Faculty, however, work at their own discretion and therefore, the Dean of Students can make no guarantees that student will receive the support they may desire.

Types of Interim Measures

Interim Separation/Suspension: In certain circumstances the Dean of Students, or designee, may impose an Interim Separation/Suspension from the College at any point after a complaint has been filed. Interim Separation/Suspension may be imposed:

- During the investigatory stage to ensure the safety and well-being of members of the College community or preservation of College property;
- To ensure the student's own physical or emotional safety and well-being; or,
- If the student poses an ongoing threat of disruption of, or interference with, the normal operations of the College, or the investigation.

During the Interim Separation/Suspension, a student shall be denied access to the residence halls and/or to the campus. Interim Separation/Suspension will not be placed on a student's official, permanent academic record.

The Interim Separation/Suspension does not replace the regular process, which shall proceed on the normal schedule, up to and through a hearing, if required. However, the student should be notified in writing of this action and the reasons for the separation. The student will also be notified of the time, date, and place of a subsequent Student Conduct Panel or Sexual Misconduct hearing, if applicable.

Interim Residential Separation or Residential Relocation: A student may be separated temporarily from College housing or temporarily reassigned to another residential location on campus. Their original housing location will be held until the process is over. It can be determined that residential relocation is a sanction when appropriate, and at that time the student will move permanently into a location determined by Campus Life and Housing.

Class Schedule Changes. Changes to a student's class schedule may be made on a temporary basis in the event it is deemed appropriate by the Dean of Students or her/his designee. Students may be sanctioned to a permanent change(s) through the normal adjudication process.



Restrictions from College Activities and/or Facilities. A student may be denied, on a temporary basis, participation in a college activity or privilege for which they may be otherwise eligible as the Dean of Students or their designee determine to be appropriate. Students may also be prohibited from certain facilities including, but not limited to, academic buildings, athletic facilities and/or practice and competition spaces, and transportation services. Students may be sanctioned to a permanent restriction(s) through the normal adjudication process.

Work or Job Assignment Changes: Changes to a student's work or job assignment may be made on a temporary basis in the event it is deemed appropriate by the Dean of Students or the Conduct Administrator.

No-Contact Directive. The College may impose a No-Contact Directive in cases where an agreement cannot be reached or is not applicable. Generally, No Contact is defined as having no direct or indirect contact with another party or parties at any time. This includes, but is not limited to, communication that is written, verbal, or physical. Written communication is understood to include all electronic means of communication; including, but not limited to, email, instant messaging text messaging, and all forms of social media. Verbal communication is understood to include phone calls and voice mail messages. A No-Contact Directive may include additional restrictions and terms. Violations of the No-Contact Directive will result in disciplinary action.

A Complainant may elect to pursue an informal resolution to a sexual misconduct complaint. The Student Conduct Administrator, with approval of the Dean of Students, can determine if it would be appropriate to resolve a complaint under this Policy through informal resolution.

An informal resolution is designed to officially resolve complaints promptly, and with mutual approval of all parties involved.

Informal resolutions include, but are not limited to, on-line education courses, counseling sessions, other educational remedies or mediation of the complaint conducted by the Conduct Officer and/or Dean of Students. Informal resolution may be used in certain cases involving sexual misconduct or intimate partner violence; sexual exploitation, and sexually inappropriate behaviors. **Informal resolution will never be used in cases involving allegations of sexual assault (rape, fondling, incest, or statutory rape.**

Both the Complainant and Respondent must agree to engage in informal resolution. Either party can end the informal resolution process at any time, for any reason, and begin the formal resolution process. Formal Resolution may not be initiated after the conclusion of Informal Resolution.

Outcomes of Informal Resolution

At the conclusion of Informal Resolution, the Conduct Officer or Dean of Students may propose a sanction agreed upon by the parties or may impose or continue a no contact directive based on information derived from the Informal Resolution proceedings, taken together with any other relevant information known to the College at the time of the Informal Resolution.

Actions imposed by the Conduct Officer and/or Dean of Students may include accommodations to living, academic courses or employment; limitations of contact between the parties; and recommendation to counseling for the Respondent.

Election of Formal Resolution

Except in cases where a Formal Resolution hearing has already been denied for not meeting the threshold, as set forth in Section III, above, the College, Complainant, or the Respondent may, at any time prior to the conclusion of the Informal Resolution, elect to end such proceedings and initiate Formal Resolution instead. In such cases, statements or disclosures made by the parties in the course of the Informal Resolution may be considered in the subsequent Formal Resolution.

Section VI. Formal Resolution



Pre-Hearing Process

After the Conduct Officer charges a student with a potential violation of policy:

- 1. The Conduct Officer, will contact the Complainant and Respondent where applicable, to go over details of the case and answer any questions concerning the process.
- 2. The Complainant and Respondent will be asked to provide the Conduct Officer with a list of witnesses (if there are any). Those witnesses will be asked to provide statements to the person or office initiating the investigative process. Character witnesses are not permitted as part of the hearing process.
- 3. The Conduct Officer will request the names of the Complainant's and Respondent's advisors. The advisors will be contacted by the Conduct Officer to be certain that they understand their role in the hearing process.
 - It is the student's responsibility to meet with the advisor and to provide the advisor with hearing materials if they so desire.
- 4. The Conduct Officer will be available to speak with the parent(s)/ guardian(s) of the Complainant and Respondent to answer any questions about the process. It is the student's responsibility to provide parent(s)/guardian(s) with copies of hearing materials if they desire. This information will not be provided by the College.

Hearing Procedures

- 1. The Conduct Officer will produce written charges to be delivered to the Respondent. The charge letter should indicate the elements of this policy that are alleged to have been violated. In addition to the formal charge letter, the Respondent will receive copies of written statements provided by witnesses during the inquiry process. The Respondent will have 5 (five) calendar days from receipt of the charge letter and statements to submit a response to the Conduct Officer to be shared with the Dean of Students.
- 2. Adjudication of the Sexual Misconduct and Intimate Partner Violence Policy will be conducted by the Dean of Students. The Dean of Students may select a designee if the Dean of Students chooses to do so. The Conduct Officer will prepare a written report of the investigation for Dean of Students or their designee (from here on referred to as Adjudicator).
- 3. The Adjudicator will base their decision on the information available in the written report, interviews with the Complainant, Respondent, witnesses, and any other information that is deemed relevant and pertinent to the case. In the event the Adjudicator wishes to meet with the Respondent or Complainant, the Respondent and Complainant will not be in the same place at the same time. Additional investigation may be conducted at the discretion of the Conduct Officer at the request of the Adjudicator.
- **4.** The standard of proof that the Adjudicator will utilize is **preponderance of information**. The preponderance standard means that the Adjudicator finds it is more likely than not the Respondent is responsible or not responsible for a violation of this policy based on the information presented to the Adjudicator.
- 5. The Respondent and Complainant will be notified in writing of the decision made by the Adjudicator within five (5) business days of the hearing. This notification to both Respondent and Complainant(s) will be done at the same time or as close to the same time as possible. If the Complainant is deceased, the next of kin will receive results of disciplinary proceedings.
- 6. A student found responsible for violating this policy may be assigned sanctions that include, but are not limited to, expulsion, suspension, or probation. For a full list of sanctions, see Section 6.

The imposition of sanctions will take effect immediately and will not be delayed pending the resolution of the appeal.

Appeal Process

Reasons for Appeal

The Respondent or Complainant may appeal a decision in a case for the following reasons:



- a. <u>Unreasonable Sanction:</u> To determine whether the magnitude of the sanction(s) imposed was unreasonable for the violation of policy for which the student was found responsible;
- b. <u>Procedural Error:</u> To determine procedural error or absence of conformity with prescribed procedures during the investigative stage or any stage of the process (including an error during the hearing) preventing either the Complainant or Respondent a reasonable opportunity to prepare and present information to the investigator; and
- c. <u>New Information:</u> To determine new information is discovered which was not available at the time of the investigative process and could have affected the outcome of the case.

Note: Appeals granted for "Unreasonable Sanction" will be referred to an Appeals Board. Appeals granted for reasons "Procedural Error" or "New Information" will go back to the original Adjudicator, unless an error during the hearing influenced the outcome. The Complainant would have the right to appeal in the case that the Respondent was found "Not Responsible", if there were a procedural error or if new information has been discovered. In all cases that go back to the Adjudicator, the Adjudicator's decision is then final.

Appeals Board

Appeals based on Unreasonable Sanction will be heard by an Appeals Board. The panel will consist of one voting faculty member who will serve as chairperson; and two voting administrators. Members of the panel will be appointed for one to two year terms and will be trained on issues related to the Sexual Misconduct and Intimate Partner Violence policy and process.

Students wishing to appeal should submit their written appeal to the Conduct Officer within five (5) calendar days of receipt of the decision by the Adjudicator. Appeals are due by 5:00pm on the fifth day following the original decision. The Conduct Officer or Title IX Officer shall determine if the grounds for appeal were met.

If the Respondent or Complainant submits an appeal and the appeal is granted, both parties will be informed by the Conduct Officer that an appeal has been granted.

- Once all parties have been notified that an appeal has been granted, the Complainant or Respondent will have the option to submit a response to the appeal in writing. This response must be received by 5:00pm on the third calendar day following the receipt of the appeal notification.
- Once a board has been convened, the original appeal letter and any responses will be submitted to the Appeals Board. This board will be chaired by one of the voting members of the Appeals Board.

The Respondent or Complainant may request the removal of a member of the Appeals Board, if the student has reason to believe that the member may not be fair or impartial. This request, including rationale, must be submitted to the Conduct Officer in writing at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing. The final decision to remove a member of the board is at the discretion of the Conduct Officer or Title IX Officer.

- The Appeals Board will have access to reports, statements by the Complainant, Respondent, witnesses and any other materials gathered during the investigation.
- The Appeal Board will vote on whether or not the original sanction(s) should be amended. Amendment of the sanctions may include an increase or decrease in severity.
- The Appeals Board may, in its sole discretion, meet with the Complainant, Respondent, others involved in the process, or the Adjudicator in order to determine whether the original sanction(s) should be amended. During any meeting with the Complainant, Respondent and/or other individuals, the Appeals Board will not revisit the entire matter, but will limit its discussion to whether the sanction is unreasonable as previously identified.
- The decision of the Board is final, except in cases of expulsion.

In Cases of Expulsion

In cases where appeals have resulted in expulsion, the Respondent will have the opportunity to submit an appeal to the President of the College. This appeal must meet one of the criteria listed above in reasons for appeal. The Respondent will have three (3) calendar days to submit the appeal in writing to the President's Office. The President or their designee, who may be external to the College, will determine whether the appeal should be granted. This decision is final.



Victim Accommodations

If you are the victim of sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking, you are entitled to changes in academic, living, and working situations if these changes are reasonably available. To request such changes, contact the Dean of Students, Office of Campus Life and Housing, or Counseling Services.

Violation of Law and District Discipline

If a student is charged only with an off-campus violation of federal, state, or local laws, but not with any other violation of this Student Code of Conduct, disciplinary action may be taken and sanctions imposed for misconduct which demonstrates disregard for the college community. District disciplinary proceedings may be instituted against a student charged with violation of a law, which is also a violation of the Student Code of Conduct. Proceedings under the Student Code of Conduct may be carried out prior to, simultaneously with, or following civil or criminal proceedings off-campus. The District's disciplinary actions will not be subject to challenges on the ground that criminal complaints involving the same incident have been dismissed or reduced. When a student is charged by federal, state, or local authorities with a violation of law, the District will not request or agree to special consideration for that individual because of his or her status as a student. If the alleged offense is also the subject of a proceeding before the student conduct/advisory board for violation of the Student Code of Conduct, however, the District may advise off-campus authorities of the existence of the Student Code of Conduct and of how such matters will be handled internally. The District will cooperate fully with law enforcement and other agencies in the enforcement of criminal law on campus and in the conditions imposed by criminal courts for the rehabilitation of student violators. Individual students and faculty members, acting in their personal capacities, remain free to interact with government representatives, as they deem appropriate.

Local, State, & Federal Legal Sanctions

For complete information regarding Wyoming State Statute governing alcohol, one should consult Wyoming Revised Statutes, 12-6-101. Some highlights are excerpted below. It is illegal for anyone less than 21 years of age to:

- Possess or Consume any alcoholic beverage (Penalty It is considered a misdemeanor, which will become
 a matter of public record as a criminal conviction and subject one to court costs and/or fines and/or
 community service.)10
- Purchase or attempt to purchase any alcoholic beverage.
- Use or attempt to use, in order to obtain alcoholic beverages when not of lawful age, a fraudulent or altered driver's license; or a fraudulent or altered identification document other than a driver's license; or a driver's license issued to another person; or an identification document other than a driver's license issued to another person, or possess a fraudulent or altered driver's license, or other forms of identification.
- Permit (aid or abet) the use of one's driver's license or any other identification-document of any kind by any person under 21 to purchase or attempt to purchase or possess alcohol. It is illegal for anyone (regardless of age) to:
- Aid and abet an underage person in the sale, purchase, and/or possession of alcohol (including- giving alcohol).
- Provide a residence or location for any person under the age of 21 to consume alcohol.

Procedures for On-Campus Disciplinary Action

Any member of the District community may file charges against a student for violence and misconduct. Charges shall be prepared in writing and directed to the dean of students. Detailed filing and hearing procedures and regulations are listed in the Student Handbook. The complainant and the accused have the right to be assisted by a District advisor and to have that advisor present during the hearing. District advisors may assist in the preparation for the hearing and speak for the parties. Following the final decision of the hearing body, both the victim and the accused will be informed of the determination and any recommended sanctions.

Procedures for Addressing Criminal Activity Off-Campus

When a NWCCD student is involved in an off-campus offense, police officers may assist with the investigation in cooperation with local, state, or federal law enforcement. Local police routinely work and communicate with campus officers on any serious incidents occurring on-campus or in the immediate neighborhood and business areas surrounding campus. NWCCD operates no off-campus housing or off-campus student organization facilities. While local police have primary jurisdiction in all areas off campus, NWCCD officers can and do respond to student-



related incidents that occur in close proximity to campus. NWCCD officers have direct radio communications with the city police, Sheriff's department, fire department, and ambulance services to facilitate rapid response in any emergency situation.

Sex Offender Registration

If you wish to view a list of registered sex offenders in Campbell, Johnson, or Sheridan Counties, please visit the following website http://wysors.dci.wyo.gov/sor/. A departmental representative will be able to answer any questions you may have regarding the information. Sex offender information can also be obtained through the Wyoming Division of Criminal Investigation website http://attorneygeneral.state.wy.us/dci/sofaq.html.

Preparation of Annual Disclosure and Distribution of Crime Statistics

The Campus Police, in collaboration with the Vice President of Administration and CFO, prepares and disseminates this report to comply with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Crime Statistics Act. The full text of this report can be located on our web site at http://www.sheridan.edu/site/departments/campus-safety/. You will also be able to connect to our site via the Northern Wyoming Community College District home page at www.sheridan.edu. This report is prepared in cooperation with the local law enforcement agencies surrounding our campuses and alternate sites, Campus Life and Housing, and the Division of Student Affairs. Each entity provides updated information on their educational efforts and programs to comply with the Act. Campus crime, arrest and referral statistics include those reported to the NWCCD Police, designated campus officials (including but not limited to directors, deans, department heads, designated Campus Life and Housing staff, advisors to students/student organizations, athletic coaches), and local law enforcement agencies. These statistics may also include crimes that have occurred in private residences or businesses and is not required by law. Department of Counseling Services staff inform their clients of the procedures to report crime to the NWCCD Police on a voluntary or confidential basis, should they feel it is in the best interest of the client. A procedure is in place to anonymously capture crime statistics disclosed confidentially during such a session.

Each year, an e-mail notification is made to all enrolled students to provide the web site to access this report. Faculty and staff receive similar notification via email. Copies of the report may also be obtained at the NWCCD Police Department office located South Hall (SC) or the Main Building Room 149 (GC) or by calling (307) 674-6446 x4150 (SC & SCJC) or (307) 684-0254 x1210 (GC). All prospective employees may obtain a copy from the NWCCD Police.

Hate Crimes

Northern Wyoming Community College District records all crimes including the aforementioned crimes, any crime involving bodily injury, larceny, intimidation, and destruction/damage/vandalism of property reported to the District Police or any other Campus Authority which manifest evidence that the crime was perpetrated because of the perpetrator's bias based on the following categories: Race, Gender, Religion, Sexual Orientation, Ethnicity, National Origin, Gender Identity and/or Disability.

- 2012 There were no reported Hate Crimes on the Northern Wyoming Community College District Campuses.
- 2013 There were no reported Hate Crimes on the Northern Wyoming Community College District Campuses.
- 2014 There were no reported Hate Crimes on the Northern Wyoming Community College District Campuses.



Sheridan College 3059 Coffeen Ave. Sheridan, WY 82801

Sheridan Campus - Criminal Offenses - On Campus

For each of the following criminal offenses, enter the number reported to								
Total occurrences On car								
Criminal offense	2012	2013	2014					
a. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0					
b. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0					
c. Sex offenses - Forcible	0	1						
d. Rape			1					
e. Fondling			0					
f. Sex offenses - Non-forcible	0	0						
g. <u>Incest</u>	0	0	0					
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0					
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0					
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0					
k. <u>Burglary</u>	1	0	0					
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0					
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0					
Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the children (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."	ange. Use the fo	llowing format: "I	For (YEAR),					



Sheridan Campus - Criminal Offenses - On-Campus Student Housing Facilities

Of those criminal offenses reported to have occurred <u>On Campus</u> , enter the number that occurred in <u>On-campus</u> <u>Student Housing Facilities</u> .								
		currences in On- ent Housing Fac						
Criminal offense	2012	2013	2014					
a. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0					
b. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0					
c. <u>Sex offenses - Forcible</u>	0	1						
d. <u>Rape</u>			1					
e. <u>Fondling</u>			0					
f. Sex offenses - Non-forcible	0	0						
g. <u>Incest</u>	0	0	0					
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0					
i. Robbery	0	0	0					
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0					
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0					
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0					
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0					
Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."	ge. Use the foll	owing format: "F	For (YEAR),					

Sheridan Campus - Criminal Offenses - Non-Campus

For each of the following criminal offenses, enter the number reported to have occurred in or on <u>Noncampus</u> buildings or property.								
	Total occurrences in or on Noncampus buildings or							
Criminal offense	2012	2013	2014					
a. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0					
b. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0					
c. <u>Sex offenses - Forcible</u>	0	0						
d. Rape			0					
e. <u>Fondling</u>			0					
f. Sex offenses - Non-Forcible	0	0						
g. Incest	0	0	0					
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0					
i. Robbery	0	0	0					
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0					
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0					
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0					
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0					
Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the char Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."	nge. Use the fol	lowing format: "F	For (YEAR),					

Sheridan Campus - Criminal Offenses - Public Property

For each of the following criminal offenses, enter the number reported to have occurred on Public Property.								
	Total occurrences on Public Property							
Criminal offense	2012	2013	2014					
a. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0					
b. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0					
c. Sex offenses - Forcible	0	0						
d. Rape			0					
e. Fondling			0					
f. Sex offenses - Non-forcible	0	0						
g. Incest	0	0	0					
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0					
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0					
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	1					
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0					
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0					
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0					

Caveat

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

An assault with a knife occurred at the Sun Village trailer park at 2857 Coffeen Ave. adjacent to Sheridan College but not under the control or in the jurisdiction of the Campus Police Dept.



Sheridan Campus - Hate Crimes - On Campus

For the criminal offenses listed below, first enter the total number of Hate Crimes that were reported to have occurred On campus. Then break down each total by category of bias (e.g., race, religion).

		Occurrences of Hate crimes										
	2014	Category of Bias for crimes reported in 2014										
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin			
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
d. Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
e. Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
i. Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
o. <u>Larceny-theft</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			

Occurrences of Hate crimes									
	2013	Category of Bias for crimes reported in 201							
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin		
a. Murder/ Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
c. <u>Sex offenses - Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
f. Sex offenses - Non-forcible	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		

i. Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

	Occurrences of Hate crimes							
	2012	Category of Bias for crimes reported in 2012						
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-negligent</u> <u>manslaughter</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses - Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. Sex offenses - Non-forcible	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. <u>Larceny-theft</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	



Sheridan Campus - Hate Crimes -

On-Campus Student Housing Facilities

For the criminal offenses listed below, first enter the total number of Hate Crimes that were reported to have occurred in On-Campus Student Housing Facilities. Then break down each total by category of bias (e.g., race, religion).

	Occurrences of Hate crimes											
	2014			Cat	egory of Bia	as for crimes	reported in 2014					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National origin			
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
d. Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
e. Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			

		Occurrences of Hate Crimes										
	2013	Category of Bias for crimes reported in 2013										
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin					
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0					
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> Forcible	0	0	0	0	0	0	0					

f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> <u>vandalism of property</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

	2012		Cate	gory of Bias fo	or crimes re	eported in 20	12	
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> <u>negligent</u> <u>manslaughter</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-</u> <u>forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. <u>Simple assault</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. <u>Larceny-theft</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

Sheridan Campus - Hate Crimes — Non-Campus

For the criminal offenses listed below, first enter the total number of Hate Crimes that were reported to have occurred in or on Noncampus buildings or property. Then break down each total by category of bias (e.g., race, religion).

					Occurrence	s of Hate Cri	imes		
	2014			Cat	egory of Bia	as for crimes	reported in 2014		
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National origin
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
d. Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
e. Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
i. Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

	2013		Cate					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> <u>vandalism of property</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

	2012		Cate	gory of Bias fo	or crimes re	eported in 20	12	
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-</u> <u>forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. <u>Simple assault</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. <u>Larceny-theft</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

Sheridan Campus - Hate Crimes - Public Property

For the criminal offenses listed below, first enter the total number of Hate Crimes that were reported to have occurred on Public Property. Then break down each total by category of bias (e.g., race, religion).

		Occurrences of Hate Crimes									
	2014			Cat	egory of Bia	as for crimes	reported in 2014				
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National origin		
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
d. Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
e. Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
i. Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> <u>vandalism of property</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		

	2013		Cate					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> <u>vandalism of property</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

	2012							
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-</u> <u>forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. <u>Simple assault</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. <u>Larceny-theft</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

Sheridan Campus - VAWA Offenses - On Campus

For each of the following crimes, enter the number reported to have occurred On Campus.									
	Tota	l Occurrences On Car	mpus						
Crime	2012	2013	2014						
a. Domestic violence			1						
b. Dating violence			1						
c. Stalking			1						
Caveat:									

Sheridan Campus - VAWA Offenses - On-Campus Student Housing Facilities

For each of the following crimes, enter the number report Facilities.	rted to have occurred	d in <u>On-campus Stuc</u>	lent Housing				
	Total Occurrences in On-campus Student Housing Facili						
Crime	2012	2013	2014				
a. <u>Domestic violence</u>			1				
b. Dating violence			1				
c. Stalking			1				
Caveat:							

Sheridan Campus - VAWA Offenses - Non-Campus

For each of the following crimes, enter the number reported to have occurred in or on Non-campus buildings or property.

	Total occurrences in	n or on Non-Campus b	ouildings or property
Crime	2012	2013	2014
a. <u>Domestic violence</u>			0
b. <u>Dating violence</u>			0
c. <u>Stalking</u>			0
Caveat:			

Sheridan Campus - VAWA Offenses - Public Property

For each of the following crimes, enter the number reported to have occurred on Public Property.					
Total Occurrences on Public Property					
2012 2013 2014					
		0			
		0			
		0			
	Total O	Total Occurrences on Public I			



Sheridan Campus - Arrests - On Campus

Enter the number of Arrests for each of the following crimes that occurred On Campus. Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations. Number of Arrests 2014 Crime 2012 2013 0 0 a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc. 7 2 b. Drug abuse violations 50 c. Liquor law violations 29 Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)." Fines on campus increased in 2014 coupled with additional education programs that caused a decrease in Liquor law violation arrests.

Sheridan Campus - Arrests - On-Campus Student Housing Facilities

Of those <u>Arrests</u> for crimes that occurred <u>On Campus</u>, enter the number of crimes that occurred in <u>On-campus</u> <u>Student Housing Facilities</u> for each of the following categories.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in liquor law violations.

	Number of Arrests		
Crime	2012	2013	2014
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0
b. Drug abuse violations	4	4	2
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	14	41	11

Caveat:

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

Fines on campus increased in 2014 coupled with additional education programs that caused a decrease in Liquor law violation arrests.

Sheridan Campus - Arrests - Non-Campus

Enter the number of <u>Arrests</u> for each of the following crimes that occurred in or on <u>Non-Campus</u> buildings or property.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations. Number of Arrests				
Crime	2012	2012 2013 2014		
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0	
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0	
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	0	0	0	
Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explainin Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."	g the change. Use t	he following format:	"For (YEAR),	

Sheridan Campus - Arrests - Public Property

Enter the number of Arrests for each of the following crimes that occurred on Public Property.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of Arrests		
Crime	2012	2013	2014
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0
c. Liquor law violations	0	0	0

Caveat

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

Sheridan Campus - Disciplinary Actions - On Campus Enter the number of persons referred for disciplinary action for crimes that occurred On Campus for each of the

following categories.

Do not include disciplinary actions that were strictly for school policy violations. If the disciplinary action is the result of an arrest, please do not count it here; count the violation as 1 arrest.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of persons referred for Disciplinary Action		
Crime	2012 2013 2014		
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0
c. Liquor law violations	0	0	0

Caveat:

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

Sheridan Campus - Disciplinary Actions - On-Campus Student **Housing Facilities**

Enter the number of persons referred for disciplinary action for crimes that occurred in On-campus Student Housing Facilities for each of the following categories.

Do not include disciplinary actions that were strictly for school policy violations.

If the disciplinary action is the result of an arrest, please do not count it here; count the violation as 1 arrest.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of persons referred for Disciplinary Action		
Crime	2012	2013	2014
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	0	0	0

Caveat:

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."



Sheridan Campus - Disciplinary Actions - Non-Campus

Enter the number of persons referred for disciplinary action for crimes that occurred in or on Non-campus buildings or property for each of the following categories.

Do not include disciplinary actions that were strictly for school policy violations.

If the disciplinary action is the result of an arrest, please do not count it here; count the violation as 1 arrest.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of persons referred for Disciplinary Action		
Crime	2012	2013	2014
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	0	0	0

Caveat:

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

Sheridan Campus - Disciplinary Actions - Public Property

Enter the number of persons <u>referred for disciplinary action</u> for crimes that occurred on <u>Public Property</u> for each of the following categories.

Do not include disciplinary actions that were strictly for school policy violations.

If the disciplinary action is the result of an arrest, please do not count it here; count the violation as 1 arrest.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of persons referred for Disciplinary Action		
Crime	2012	2013	2014
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	0	0	0

Caveat:

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

Sheridan Campus - Unfounded Crimes

Of those crimes that occurred <u>On Campus</u>, in <u>On-campus Student Housing Facilities</u>, on or in <u>Noncampus</u> property or buildings, and on <u>Public Property</u>, enter the number of crimes that were unfounded.

The total number of unfounded crimes should include all criminal offenses, hate crimes, arrests or disciplinary action referrals for weapons, drug or liquor law violations, and domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking incidents that have been unfounded.

If a reported crime is investigated by law enforcement authorities and found to be false or baseless, the crime is "unfounded". Only sworn or commissioned law enforcement personnel may unfound a crime.

Count unfounded crimes in the year in which they were originally reported.

	Number				
	2012	2013	2014		
a. Total unfounded crimes			0		

Caveat:

Gillette College 300 W. Sinclair Gillettte, WY 82718

Gillette Campus - Criminal Offenses - On Campus

For each of the following criminal offenses, enter the number reported to have occurred On Campus.									
	Total	Total occurrences On campus							
Criminal offense	2012	2013	2014						
a. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0						
b. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0						
c. Sex offenses - Forcible	1	0							
d. <u>Rape</u>			0						
e. <u>Fondling</u>			0						
f. Sex offenses - Non-forcible	0	0							
g. Incest	0	0	0						
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0						
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0						
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0						
k. <u>Burglary</u>	2	0	0						
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0						
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0						

Caveat:

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

Gillette Campus - Criminal Offenses - On-Campus Student Housing Facilities

Of those criminal offenses reported to have occurred <u>On Campus</u> , enter the number that occurred in <u>On-campus</u> <u>Student Housing Facilities</u> .									
		Total occurrences in On-Campus Student Housing Facilities							
Criminal offense	2012	2013	2014						
a. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0						
b. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0						
c. <u>Sex offenses - Forcible</u>	1	0							
d. Rape			0						
e. Fondling			0						
f. Sex offenses - Non-forcible	0	0							
g. <u>Incest</u>	0	0	0						
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0						
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0						
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0						
k. <u>Burglary</u>	2	0	0						
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0						
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0						
Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."	ge. Use the follo	owing format: "F	For (YEAR),						

Gillette Campus - Criminal Offenses - Non-Campus

For each of the following criminal offenses, enter the number reported to he buildings or property.	ave occurred i	n or on <u>Non-ca</u>	<u>impus</u>		
	Total occurrences in or on Non-campus buildings or proper				
Criminal offense	2012	2013	2014		
a. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0		
b. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0		
c. Sex offenses - Forcible	0	0			
d. <u>Rape</u>			0		
e. Fondling			0		
f. Sex offenses - Non-Forcible	0	0			
g. Incest	0	0	0		
h. <u>Statutory rape</u>	0	0	0		
i. Robbery	0	0	0		
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0		
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0		
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0		
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0		
Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the char Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."	nge. Use the fol	llowing format: "	For (YEAR),		

Gillette Campus - Criminal Offenses - Public Property

For each of the following criminal offenses, enter the number reported to		on <u>Public Pro</u>							
Total occurrences on Public Prop									
Criminal offense	2012	2013	2014						
a. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0						
b. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0						
c. <u>Sex offenses - Forcible</u>	0	0							
d. Rape			0						
e. Fondling			0						
f. Sex offenses - Non-forcible	0	0							
g. <u>Incest</u>	0	0	0						
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0						
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0						
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0						
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0						
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0						
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0						
Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the cline (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."	hange. Use the f	following format:	"For (YEAR),						



Gillette Campus-Hate Crimes - On Campus

For the criminal offenses listed below, first enter the total number of Hate Crimes that were reported to have occurred On campus. Then break down each total by category of bias (e.g., race, religion).

	Occurrences of Hate crimes											
	2014			Catego	ory of Bias f	or crimes rep	orted in 2014					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin			
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
d. Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
e. <u>Fondling</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			

		Occurrences of Hate crimes										
	2013		Category of Bias for crimes reported in 2013									
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin					
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0					
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0					
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-</u> <u>forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0					
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0					
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0					

i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

		Occurrences of Hate Crimes								
Orienia al attanca	2012	Category of Bias for crimes reported in 2012								
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin			
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
I. Motor vehicle theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			



Gillette Campus-Hate Crimes -

On-campus Student Housing Facilities

For the criminal offenses listed below, first enter the total number of Hate Crimes that were reported to have occurred in On-Campus Student Housing Facilities. Then break down each total by category of bias (e.g., race, religion).

	Occurrences of Hate crimes											
	2014		Category of Bias for crimes reported in 2014									
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National origin			
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
d. <u>Rape</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
e. <u>Fondling</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> <u>vandalism of property</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			

	2013		Cate					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

	2012		Cate					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. <u>Simple assault</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. <u>Larceny-theft</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	



Gillette Campus-Hate Crimes — Non-Campus

For the criminal offenses listed below, first enter the total number of <u>Hate Crimes</u> that were reported to have occurred in or on <u>Noncampus</u> buildings or property. Then break down each total by category of bias (e.g., race, religion).

	Occurrences of Hate Crimes									
	2014			Cat	egory of Bia	as for crimes	reported in 2014			
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
d. Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
e. Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

	2013		Cate					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

			C					
	2012		Cate					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. <u>Larceny-theft</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	



Gillette Campus-Hate Crimes - Public Property

For the criminal offenses listed below, first enter the total number of Hate Crimes that were reported to have occurred on Public Property. Then break down each total by category of bias (e.g., race, religion).

	Occurrences of Hate crimes										
	2014	Category of Bias for crimes reported in 2014									
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National origin		
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
d. <u>Rape</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
e. Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
i. Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		

	2013		Cate					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft (Do not include theft from a motor vehicle)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

			C					
	2012		Cate					
Criminal offense	Total	Race	Religion	Sexual orientation	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity/ National origin	
a. <u>Murder/ Non-</u> negligent manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
c. <u>Sex offenses -</u> <u>Forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
f. <u>Sex offenses - Non-forcible</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
g. Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
h. Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
i. <u>Robbery</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
j. Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
k. <u>Burglary</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
I. Motor vehicle theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
m. <u>Arson</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
n. Simple assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
o. <u>Larceny-theft</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
p. Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
q. <u>Destruction/damage/</u> vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

Gillette Campus - VAWA Offenses - On Campus

For each of the following crimes, enter the number reported to have occurred <u>On Campus</u> .								
	Total occurences On Campus							
Crime	2012	2013	2014					
a. <u>Domestic violence</u>			0					
b. <u>Dating violence</u>			0					
c. <u>Stalking</u>			2					
Caveat:								
One stalking occurred at the Gillette College Tech Center was reported to Gillette Police at 4001 Saunders on the Campbell County High School South Campus. Campus Police were made aware after the incident occurred and issued a no trespass to the offender.								

Gillette Campus - VAWA Offenses - On-Campus Student Housing Facilities

For each of the following crimes, enter the number reportant reportant facilities.	rted to have occurred	d in <u>On-campus Stuc</u>	lent Housing
	Total occurences i	in On-campus Student	t Housing Facilities
Crime	2012	2013	2014
a. <u>Domestic violence</u>			0
b. Dating violence			0
c. Stalking			1
Caveat:			

Gillette Campus - VAWA Offenses - Non-Campus

	(000 11011	Odinipao
For each of the following crimes, enter the number report property.	rted to have occurred	d in or on Non-campu	us buildings or
	Total occurrences in	n or on Non-campus b	uildings or property
Crime	2012	2013	2014
a. <u>Domestic violence</u>			0
b. <u>Dating violence</u>			0
c. <u>Stalking</u>			0
Caveat:			

Gillette Campus - VAWA Offenses - Public Property

For each of the following crimes, enter the number reported to have occurred on Public Property.									
	Total or	ccurrences on Public F	Property						
Crime	2012	2013	2014						
a. <u>Domestic violence</u>			0						
b. <u>Dating violence</u>			0						
c. <u>Stalking</u>			0						
Caveat:									

Gillette Campus - Arrests - On Campus

Enter the number of Arrests for each of the following crimes that occurred On Campus.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of Arrests				
Crime	2012	2013	2014		
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0		
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	2	0	2		
c. Liquor law violations	3	6	8		

Caveat:

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

One drug abuse violation was conducted by Gillette Police Dept. as a traffic stop that stopped on the Gillette College Campus and resulted in an arrest.

Gillette Campus - Arrests - On-Campus Student Housing Facilities

Of those <u>Arrests</u> for crimes that occurred <u>On Campus</u>, enter the number of crimes that occurred in <u>On-campus</u> <u>Student Housing Facilities</u> for each of the following categories.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of Arrests			
Crime	2012	2013	2014	
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0	
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	2	0	1	
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	2	6	8	

Caveat

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

Gillette Campus - Arrests - Non-Campus Enter the number of Arrests for each of the following crimes that occurred in or on Non-Campus buildings or

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of Arrests				
Crime	2012	2013	2014		
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0		
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	1	0		
c. Liquor law violations	0	1	0		
Cavast					

Caveat:

f yo	u have	changed	prior	years'	data,	you mus	add a	caveat	explaini	ng the	change.	Use the	following	format:	"For (YEAR),
_ine	(X) wa	s change	ed fron	n (A) to	o (B) b	ecause (REAS	ON)."								

Gillette Campus - Arrests - Public Property

Enter the number of Arrests for each of the following crimes that occurred on Public Property.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of Arrests			
Crime	2012	2013	2014	
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0	
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	5	
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	0	0	0	

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

4 drug abuse violations occurred at the Westwood Alternative High School adjacent to Gillette College. 1 drug abuse violation occurred on Sinclair Drive that bi-sects the Gillette College campus. All violations were reported to and investigated by the Gillette Police Department.

Gillette Campus - Disciplinary Actions - On Campus

Enter the number of persons referred for disciplinary action for crimes that occurred On Campus for each of the following categories.

Do not include disciplinary actions that were strictly for school policy violations.

If the disciplinary action is the result of an arrest, please do not count it here; count the violation as 1 arrest.								
Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.								
Number of persons referred for Disciplinary Action								
Crime	2012	2013	2014					
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0					
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0					
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	0	0	0					
Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."	the change. Use the	ne following format:	"For (YEAR),					

Gillette Campus - Disciplinary Actions - On-Campus Student **Housing Facilities**

Enter the number of persons referred for disciplinary action for crimes that occurred in On-campus Student Housing Facilities for each of the following categories.

Do not include disciplinary actions that were strictly for school policy violations.

If the disciplinary action is the result of an arrest, please do not count it here; count the violation as 1 arrest.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of persons referred for Disciplinary Action			
Crime	2012	2013	2014	
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0	
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0	
c. Liquor law violations	0	0	0	

C	21	۵,	2	ŧ	
u	а١	/ 🖰	а	ι	

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

		` '	Ū	` '	` '	•	,	
	-							
	ш							
	ш							
	ш							
I								

Gillette Campus - Disciplinary Actions — Non-Campus Enter the number of persons referred for disciplinary action for crimes that occurred in or on Non-campus

buildings or property for each of the following categories.

Do not include disciplinary actions that were strictly for school policy violations.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.							
Number of persons referred for Disciplinary Action							
Crime	2012	2013	2014				
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0				
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0				
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	0	0	0				
Caveat: If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."	the change. Use t	he following format: '	"For (YEAR),				

Gillette Campus - Disciplinary Actions - Public Property Enter the number of persons referred for disciplinary action for crimes that occurred on Public Property for each of

the following categories.

Do not include disciplinary actions that were strictly for school policy violations.

If the disciplinary action is the result of an arrest, please do not count it here; count the violation as 1 arrest.

Do NOT include drunkenness or driving under the influence in Liquor law violations.

	Number of persons referred for Disciplinary Action				
Crime	2012	2013	2014		
a. Weapons: carrying, possessing, etc.	0	0	0		
b. <u>Drug abuse violations</u>	0	0	0		
c. <u>Liquor law violations</u>	0	0	0		

Ca	٧	е	а	t	

If you have changed prior years' data, you must add a caveat explaining the change. Use the following format: "For (YEAR), Line (X) was changed from (A) to (B) because (REASON)."

	` '	•	. , . ,	•	,	



Gillette Campus - Unfounded Crimes

Of those crimes that occurred <u>On Campus</u>, in <u>On-campus Student Housing Facilities</u>, on or in <u>Noncampus</u> property or buildings, and on <u>Public Property</u>, enter the number of crimes that were unfounded.

The total number of unfounded crimes should include all criminal offenses, hate crimes, arrests or disciplinary action referrals for weapons, drug or liquor law violations, and domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking incidents that have been unfounded.

If a reported crime is investigated by law enforcement authorities and found to be false or baseless, the crime is "unfounded". Only sworn or commissioned law enforcement personnel may unfound a crime.

Count unfounded crimes in the year in which they were originally reported.

		Number	
	2012	2013	2014
a. Total unfounded crimes			0

Caveat:



Fire Safety Report

Fire Hazards:

Prohibited items: Candles, candle warmers, incense, heat lamps, fog machines, fireworks, non-surge protector extension cords, potpourri pots, air conditioners* (including floor models), cooking and heating coils, electric blankets, kerosene or electric heaters, extension electric plugs, toaster ovens, sun lamps and halogen lamps, electric frying pans, George Foreman Grills, wireless access points, fog machines, pets or animals of any kind (they are not allowed in the halls event to visit), firearms: they are NEVER ALLOWED in the residence halls or on campus in vehicles **NOTE**: Cooking is not allowed in residence hall rooms...only in kitchens.

• DVD players, TVs, Refrigerators

Use of electrical devices such as stereos, DVD/CD players, hair dryers, and personal computers are permitted providing such devices are plugged within the room and do not exceed the amperage limits of the circuits within the room. Only one freestanding TV and refrigerator are allowed per room. Each room in Founders, South, and the Villas has a cable TV hook-up, so a cable-ready TV is best for viewing.

- Televisions must meet the following specifications:
- Power input 120 volts.
- Refrigerators Are Allowed Only In The Villas at Sheridan College. If you choose
 to bring a personal refrigerator it must meet these specifications: Capacity four (4)
 cubic feet, energy star approved

FIRE SAFETY

- 1. Unannounced fire evacuation drills will be held regularly throughout the school year in each residence hall. At Sheridan College Students who fail to exit the halls, attempt to re-enter the building without permission of proper authorities or fail to comply with College officials will be subject to disciplinary action and the assessment of fines. At Gillette College resident students are required to shelter in place in the absence of smoke or flames. If smoke and flames are visible students are to evacuate to the designated area.
- 2. Tampering with fire safety equipment or fire alarms is a violation of State Law, as well as college policy. Persons found in violation will be subject to severe disciplinary action.
- 3. Fire detection units should not be covered or blocked at any time.
- 4. For reasons of fire safety, the following items are not permitted in student rooms: Space heaters, halogen lamps, non UL rated lamps, any non UL rated decorations requiring electricity, sun lamps/tanning beds, toaster ovens, hot plates, candles with or without wicks, decorative candles, incense, candle warmers, tart burners, non-light bulb potpourri burners, scented oil burners, live/cut Christmas Trees and Wreaths.
- 5. Unauthorized possession, storage or use of hazardous or dangerous weapons, explosive components or substances including, but not limited to, firearms, fireworks, and chemical materials such as gasoline/fuels, kerosene or compressed gases/air in College residence halls is specifically forbidden and, therefore, subject to severe disciplinary action.
- 6. Do not hang anything from the sprinkler heads. This will cause damage to the system that will be charged to the occupants of that suite/room. Additionally, decorations or objects hung on the walls must be at least 18 inches from the ceiling.
- 7. Fire safety tips:
 - a. Know where alarm pull stations are in your building
 - b. Know all of the exits and evacuation plans to your building
 - c. If you discover smoke or fire



- i. Sound the alarm
- ii. Call 911
- d. If you are in a burning building
 - i. Close the window
 - ii. Close the door
 - iii. Go to the nearest exit or stairs (if you are in a smoke-filled area, keep low to the floor)
 - iv. Leave the building immediately

In case of fire, notify the Resident Assistant and pull the local fire alarm located nearest to your location. (Make a mental note of the location of fire alarms so you will know exactly where they are if needed.) Upon hearing the alarm, all residents should close their windows and doors, leaving them unlocked, and if safe passage is possible, proceed to a safe area a distance away from the building and await further instructions. If safe passage is not possible, residents should wait in their rooms with doors closed. Anyone caught turning in a false alarm will be subject to disciplinary measures.

FIREWORKS

Possession or use of fireworks within the city limits of Sheridan, which includes the Sheridan College campus, is illegal. Fireworks can be dangerous as well as a fire hazard and are not be used or stored in students' rooms.

SMOKE DETECTORS

All rooms are equipped with electric smoke detectors. For your protection and that of other residents, keep smoke detectors in working order. Students will be fined if alarms are found disturbed in any way. The cost to repair electric smoke detectors is approximately \$50 each.

SMOKING

The entire campus is smoke free. This means that you may smoke only in your personal vehicle. The smoke detectors in the rooms are extremely sensitive, and the entire fire alarm system will be activated if any smoke is detected, so don't try smoking in your room. Persons caught smoking outside of their personal vehicle will go through the judicial process. If you are interested in quitting please visit http://wellbeingofwyoming.org/quit.htm for information on programs that can help.

FIRE ALARM PROCEDURE

- Stop all activity
- Close all windows and doors
- Follow evacuation procedure, refer to evacuation map

EVACUTION PROCEDURES

- Leave the building as instructed, in a calm, orderly manner. Use the predetermined evacuation route or alternate safe route. Ensure residents remain out of the way of emergency responders.
- Keep residents quiet and calm. Stay with the residents and keep them together, take attendance.
- DO NOT return to or move to another site unless told to do so by emergency personnel or College Official.
- Listen for further instructions.
- Refer all media who attempt to speak with you or your students to the College Public Information
 Officer.



FIRE SAFETY EDUCATION AND TRAINING PROGRAM

Each year the housing professional and student staff are trained by the Sheridan Fire Department during the August training. Fire extinguisher training happens yearly with all Sheridan College facilities staff with the Sheridan Fire Department. Gillette College facilities staff are trained yearly on eye wash stations, use of chemical showers, and fire evacuation procedures by the Gillette College Facilities Director.

REPORTING PROCESS

In the event that a fire has occurred, individuals are encouraged to contact the following individuals:

- Sheridan College
 - o NWCCD Chief of Police, 307-752-2253
 - o Director of Facilities, 307-752-1760
 - o Director of Campus Life and Housing, 307-752-7579
 - o Maintenance Manager, 307-752-1805
- Gillette College
 - o NWCCD Police Lieutenant, 307-689-7586
 - o Director of Facilities, 307-689-1242
 - o Director of Campus Life and Housing, 307-696-7855
- Sheridan College in Johnson County
 - o Director of Sheridan College in Johnson County, 307-620-1271

FUTURE PLANS

The next steps in improving the fire safety education and training program is to expand the training to all residential students and faculty and staff on each campus. We would also like to include the respective fire departments more thoroughly.



Sheridan Campus - Fires - Summary

Summary of Fires										
	2012			2013			2014			
Name of Facility	Fires	Injuries	Deaths	Fires	Injuries	Deaths	Fires	Injuries	Deaths	
Crook	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Kearney	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Connor	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
South	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Founders	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Blume	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Davis	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Diefenderfer	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Eaton	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Griffin	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Griffith	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Hanson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
McKeen	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Thorne	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Fitzgerald	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Stevens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Williams	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Hayes	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
East	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Total	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	



Gillette Campus - Fires - Summary

Summary of Fires										
		2012		2013			2014			
Name of Facility	Fires	Injuries	Deaths	Fires	Injuries	Deaths	Fires	Injuries	Deaths	
Residence Village A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Residence Village B	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Residence Village C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Residence Village D	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Total	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	



Fire Safety Systems in NWCCD Residential Facilities

Sheridan College

Residential Facility	Fire Alarm Monitoring Done By Simplex Grinnell	Partial *1 Sprinkler System	Full *2 Sprinkler System	Smoke Detection	Fire Extinguisher Devices	Evacuations Plans & Placards	Number of Evacuation (fire) drills each calendar year
Family Housing, 3207 Coffeen Ave	X	Х	Х	X	X	X	0
Founders Hall, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
South Hall, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Crook Hall, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Kearney Hall, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Connor Hall, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Blume House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Davis House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Diefenderfer House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Eaton House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Griffin House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Hanson House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Griffith House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
McKeen House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Thorne House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Fitzgerald House, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Hayes Hall, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Stevens Hall, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7
Williams Hall, 3059 Coffeen Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	7

^{*1} Partial Sprinkler System is defined as having sprinklers in the common areas only

^{*2} Full Sprinkler System is defined as having sprinklers in both the common areas and individual rooms.



Gillette College

Residential Facility	Fire Alarm Monitoring Done By Simplex Grinnell	Partial *1 Sprinkler System	Full *2 Sprinkler System	Smoke Detection	Fire Extinguisher Devices	Evacuations Plans & Placards	Number of Evacuation (fire) drills each calendar year
Tanner Village Building 1, 300 W. Sinclair Ave	Х	х	Х	Х	X	Х	8
Tanner Village Building 2, 300 W. Sinclair Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	X	X	8
Tanner Village Building 3, 300 W. Sinclair Ave	Х	Х	Х	Х	X	X	8
Tanner Village Building 4, 300 W. Sinclair Ave	Х	х	х	X	Х	Х	8

^{*1} Partial Sprinkler System is defined as having sprinklers in the common areas only

^{*2} Full Sprinkler System is defined as having sprinklers in both the common areas and individual rooms.



Appendix..... DEFINITION OF TERMS

Sex Offenses Definitions: As per the National Incident-Based Reporting System Edition of the Uniform Crime Reporting Program

Sex Offenses-Forcible: Any sexual act directed against another person, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent.

- A. Forcible Rape Penetration, no matter how slight, of the vagina or anus with any body part or object, or oral penetration by a sex organ of another person, without the consent of the victim.
- B. Forcible Sodomy Oral or anal sexual intercourse with another person, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.
- C. Sexual Assault with an Object The use of an object or instrument to unlawfully penetrate, however slightly, the genital or anal opening of the body of another person, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.
- D. Forcible Fondling The touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of sexual gratification, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or, not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.

Sex Offenses-Non-Forcible: Unlawful, non-forcible sexual intercourse.

- A. Incest Non-forcible sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
- B. Statutory Rape Non-forcible sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent.

Sex Offenses-Unfounded: Any Sex offense allegations that are found to be untrue or cannot be prosecuted by local, state or federal law will be reported as unfound.

Consent: Consent means that both people in a sexual encounter must agree to it, and either person may decide at any time that they no longer consent and want to stop the activity.

Consenting to one behavior **does not** obligate you to consent to any other behaviors. Consenting on one occasion also does not obligate you to consent on any other occasion.

Consenting means only that at this particular time, you would like to engage in this particular sexual behavior

Awareness Program: a program designed to increase awareness of something

Bystander intervention: Help provided to a person in need by a bystander

Ongoing prevention campaigns: prevention campaigns that occur on a regular or yearly basis

Ongoing awareness campaigns: awareness campaigns that occur on a regular or yearly basis

Primary prevention programs: Prevention programs that are used consistently

Risk reduction: systematic approach to identifying, assessing and reducing the risks of a threat

CRIME DEFINITIONS FROM THE UNIFORM CRIME REPORTING HANDBOOK

Aggravated Assault: an unlawful attack by one person upon another for the purpose of inflicting severe or aggravated bodily injury. This type of assault usually is accompanied by the use of a weapon or by means likely to produce death or great bodily harm. It is not necessary that injury result from an aggravated assault when a gun, knife, or other weapon is used which could or probably would result in a serious potential injury if the crime were successfully completed.



Arson: Any willful or malicious burning or attempt to burn, with or without intent to defraud, a dwelling, house, public building, motor vehicle or aircraft, personal property, etc.

Burglary: The unlawful entry of a structure to commit a felony or a theft. For reporting purposes this definition includes: unlawful entry with intent to commit a larceny or a felony; breaking and entering with intent to commit a larceny; housebreaking; safecracking; and all attempts to commit any of the aforementioned.

Dating Violence: violence committed by a person

- Who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim; and
- Where the existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on a consideration of the following factors:
 - The length of the relationship;
 - The type of relationship; and the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

Domestic Violence: A felony or misdemeanor crime of violence committee by

- A current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim
- A person with whom the victim shares a child in common,
- A person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner,
- A person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction receiving grant monies (under VAWA) or
- Any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that person's acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction.

Drug Abuse Violations: Violations of state and local laws relating to the unlawful possession, sale, use, growing, manufacturing, and making of narcotic drugs. The relevant substances include: opium or cocaine and their derivatives (morphine, heroin, codeine); marijuana; synthetic narcotics (Demerol, methadone); and dangerous non-narcotic drugs (barbiturates, Benzedrine).

Fire: any instance of open flame or other burning in a place not intended to contain the burning or in an uncontrolled manner.

Liquor Law Violations: The violation of laws or ordinance prohibiting: the manufacture, sale, transporting, furnishing, possessing of intoxicating liquor; maintaining unlawful drinking places; bootlegging; operating a still; furnishing liquor to minor or intemperate person; using a vehicle for illegal transportation of liquor; drinking on a train or public conveyance; and all attempts to commit any of the aforementioned violations

Manslaughter by Negligence: The killing of another person through gross negligence.

Motor Vehicle Theft: The theft or attempted theft of a motor vehicle. (Classify as motor vehicle theft all cases where automobiles are taken by persons not having lawful access even though the vehicles are later abandoned-including joy riding).

Murder and Non-negligent Manslaughter: The willful (non-negligent) killing of one human being by another.

Robbery: The taking or attempting to take anything of value from the care, custody, or control of a person or persons by force or threat of force, violence, and/or causing the victim fear.

Stalking: engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to—

- Fear for his or her safety or the safety of others; or
- Suffer substantial emotional distress

Weapon Law Violations: The violation of laws or ordinances dealing with weapon offenses, regulatory in nature, such as: manufacture, sale, or possession of deadly weapons; carrying deadly weapons, concealed or openly; furnishing deadly weapons to minors; aliens possessing deadly weapons; all attempts to commit any of the aforementioned.



LOCATION DEFINITIONS FROM THE JEANNE CLERY DISCLOSURE OF CAMPUS SECURITY POLICY AND CAMPUS CRIME STATISTICS ACT

On-Campus:

- (1) Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area and used by the institution in direct support of or in a manner related to the institution's educational purposes, including residence halls; and
- (2) Any building or property that is within or reasonably contiguous to the area identified in paragraph (1), that is owned by the institution but controlled by another person, is frequently used by students and supports institutional purposes (such as a food or retail vendor).

Non-Campus Building or Property:

- (1) Any building or property owned or controlled by a student organization that is officially recognized by the institution; or
- (2) Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution that is used in direct support of or in relation to the institution's educational purposes, is frequently used by students, and is not within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area of the institution.